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Amendment Five
Question Number: 1


Question: In the remote event that a converter box retails for less than $40, will the outstanding balance on the coupon cover sales tax?

 

Answer: The Government does not think this issue should affect Offerors' technical or price proposals and will provide guidance at a later point.

******************************************************

Question Number: 2


Question: Has the NTIA performed field research on the projected volume of redemption?


Answer: No

******************************************************

Question Number: 3


Question: Will the winning bidder need to verify funding upfront?


Answer: Please expand the question, we are not sure what you’re asking.

******************************************************

Question Number: 4


Question: If we were to run this program through a third party issuer and use a credit charter, would we need to validate credit worthiness of consumer?

  
Answer: No. This is a Coupon Program. Coupon value funds will be held by the Government and distributed directly to retailers.

******************************************************

Question Number: 5


Question: Will the government fund a portion of the cost of setup/issuance/upfront reserve due to the sixty day payment criteria? If so, how much?

  
Answer: No.  The Government will not make any Advance Payments

******************************************************

Question Number: 6


Question: Can multiple parties issue the card?

  
Answer: The question is not clear. The Contractor creates and distributes the coupons.

******************************************************

Question Number: 7


Question: Can an approved third party issuer be granted dispensation on state money transfer laws (lifting reserve rules)?

  
Answer: The question is not clear. This is a Coupon Program. The Government not the Contractor makes payments directly to the retailer.

******************************************************

Question Number: 8


Question: Can the government be the issuer?

  
Answer: What is meant by the issuer? The Government is acquiring this service via a resultant contract from this solicitation. So if it is meant will the Government issue the contract yes.  If what is meant is will the Government issue the coupons the answer is no.

******************************************************

Question Number: 9


Question: Have all the exclusions been identified in the shipping and delivery of the coupon?

  
Answer: The Contractor produces the coupons and distributes coupons via U. S. Postal Service to households as required by the Deficit Reduction Act.

******************************************************

Question Number: 10


Question: Is there an anticipated date for the award of a contract via this solicitation?

  
Answer: On or about August 15, 2007

******************************************************

Question Number: 11


Question: Can the rollout be staggered (e.g. can the funding be staggered)?

  
Answer: RFP Section 3.3.1 states the Contractor must be ready to accept coupon requests on January 1, 2008. Once the Start-up and OCD is completed the Contractor "Accepts consumer requests and distribution" under the Operational Period. Any proposed rollout must be consistent with the RFP.

******************************************************

Question Number: 12


Question: Will there be standardized prices on units?

  
Answer: Assuming the word "unit" means converter box, retailers will set the "unit" price.

******************************************************

Question Number: 13


Question: How will returns/exchanges be handled? How will returns and repurchases at different merchants be handled?

  
Answer: The redemption and payment transaction must comply with the Final Rule, see, e.g. Section 301.4(f).  Retailers will handle all exchanges.

******************************************************

Question Number: 14


Question: Will tax be included in the total card amount? If yes, will federal, city and state tax variation across the states be taken into account?

  
Answer: The Government does not think this issue should affect Offerors' technical or price proposals and will provide guidance at a later point.

******************************************************

Question Number: 15


Question: Can we limit to one item per purchase (mixed purchases can be difficult)?

  
Answer: A consumer may use the coupon for the purchase of a certified eligible converter box (CECB) for up to $40 per CECB.  As long as the retailers' systems can handle the transaction that includes the CECB with multiple other items being purchased by the consumer at the same time and also provide the appropriate verification that the coupon is a valid coupon there is no need to limit the purchase to only the CECB.

******************************************************

Question Number: 16


Question: Is there an expectation that the contact centers will be responsible for technical support (e.g., How do I connect my box) or will they refer such questions back to the retailer?

  
Answer: No. There is no defined outcome or requirement in RFP for converter box installation technical support services.

******************************************************

Question Number: 17


Question: Are there any prohibitions to "offshoring" coupon processing functions such as data entry or call center support?

  
Answer: There is no restriction in the Final Rule. However, the Contractor must be compliant with all RFP requirements.

******************************************************

Question Number: 18


Question: Do the references to "days" refer to business days or calendar days?

  
Answer: With respect to retailer payments, "days" mean business days. In all other references, "days" mean calendar days.

******************************************************

Question Number: 19


Question: Section C.2 mentions "industry stakeholders." Section L mentions "project stakeholders."  Section J mentions "Media Industry and Stakeholders."  Section C.3.2 mentions "consumer and stakeholder concerns" and the need to seek "stakeholder cooperation." Can the government identify the composition of these various stakeholder groups?

  
Answer: There are a number of public documents, including the Final Rule, that identify various "stakeholders". See www.ntia.doc.gov.

******************************************************

Question Number: 20


Question: If a consumer reports a lost or stolen coupon, is there a policy whether a replacement coupon may be given?

  
Answer: After award, the Program Office will develop guidelines addressing such circumstances for the contractor to use during the performance of this contract.

*****************************************************

Question Number: 21


Question: If a coupon has expired, can a consumer apply again?

  
Answer: After award, the Program Office will develop guidelines addressing such circumstances for the contractor to use during the performance of this contract.

******************************************************

Question Number: 22


Question: Can a consumer request only one coupon then later apply for a second coupon?

  
Answer: Yes

******************************************************

Question Number: 23


Question: If a consumer moves to an address that has already received coupons, is this consumer not allowed to receive coupons?

  
Answer: If household at a specific address has already received and redeemed up to two coupons the Government will not accept a request for additional coupons, unless the Contractor has additional information to justify the distribution.

******************************************************

Question Number: 24


Question: If a consumer applies and receives 2 coupons in one address then moves to another address, can this consumer apply again?

  
Answer: No, the limit is two coupons.

******************************************************

Question Number: 25


Question: What are the language requirements for the coupons?

  
Answer: The coupons must be in English for retailers to read.

*****************************************************

Question Number: 26


Question: Will the contractor have the opportunity to offer an optional choice for consumers requesting coupon(s) so they can be contacted by a 3rd party company who can help drive the contract fulfillment?

  
Answer: No

******************************************************

Question Number: 27


Question: Would NTIA consider modifying the costing requirements to include Time and Materials for certain elements of the program (e.g., Retailer Certification and Training Materials, Start-up and OCD)?

  
Answer: No. As stated in RFP Section B "This is a Firm Fixed Price type contract for some services and a Fixed Price Indefinite Delivery Requirements type contract for certain portions."

******************************************************

Question Number: 28


Question: Infrastructure Costs, what is involved in the Operational Capacity Demonstration from the Network?

  
Answer: The Operational Capability Demonstration (OCD) is the  testing of the Contractor's technical solution for processing including all elements the Offeror identifies such as coupon requests, distribution, redemption and payments and any network services, if proposed. See RFP Section C.3 "The Contractor shall furnish the necessary personnel, material, equipment, services and facilities (except as otherwise specified): to perform the Statement of Objectives and as referenced as attachments in Section J."

******************************************************

Question Number: 29


Question: FP Requirements SLINS for Transactions, will Network be able to bill government on distribution of cards every month?

  
Answer: No.

See RFP Section C.3 "The Contractor shall furnish the necessary personnel, material, equipment, services and facilities (except as otherwise specified): to perform the following Statement of Objectives and as referenced as attachments in Section J."

Note: There are a number of questions asking if the Government will pay for the services, e.g., Network fees. There is no GFE or GFP.

*****************************************************

Question Number: 30


Question: FP Requirements Coupon Redemption and Retailer Payment, upon completed transaction, calls for reimbursement to merchant. Shouldnï¿½t this reimbursement be to the card issuer?

  
Answer: No. The Government not the Contractor makes payments directly to the retailer.

******************************************************

Question Number: 31


Question: During the contingent period, what are the validation mechanisms to verify that households do not receive cable or satellite services?

  
Answer: See Final Rule Section 301. "Accordingly, applicants for coupons must provide the following: (1) name; (2) address; (3) the number of coupons that they require; and (4) a certification as to whether they receive cable, satellite, or other paid television service."

******************************************************

Question Number: 32


Question: If additional funds are required, how long would the request take to get approved by Congress or appropriate authority? Is there a possibility that this additional funding could be denied?

  
Answer: As stated in the RFP ï¿½The Act authorizes additional funding of $510 million upon certification to Congress that the initial amount is insufficient to fulfill coupon requests (Contingent Funds).ï¿½ It is the intent of the Government to certify to Congress the need for Contingent Funds before the initial funding level is exhausted.  It should be noted that the use of contingent funds is subject to funding availability as well as changes to the law.

******************************************************

Question Number: 33


Question: Please verify that travel approved under FP task order CLIN 0005 is separate of funds appropriated Program Administration, Consumer Education, of Coupon Program.

  
Answer: No. Travel cost is included in the Program Administration funding levels as defined in the law.

******************************************************

Question Number: 34


Question: If funds were not all used for spend could allocation of funds be reallocated to fund more of the implementation or consumer awareness campaign?

  
Answer: No. The total Program Administration funding and $5m Consumer Education funding level is defined in the law.

******************************************************

Question Number: 35


Question: Paragraph three says additional funds are authorized after a 60 day notice to Congress. This wording seems to indicate that funds are guaranteed, Congress just needs to be notified, is this correct?

  
Answer: As stated in the RFP "The Act authorizes additional funding of $510 million upon certification to Congress that the initial amount is insufficient to fulfill coupon requests (Contingent Funds)." It is the intent of the Government to certify to Congress the need for Contingent Funds before the initial funding level is exhausted.  See also, Deficit Reduction Act of 2005, Section 3005 (c) (3).  It should be noted that use of contingent funds is subject to funding availability as well as changes in the law.

*****************************************************

Question Number: 36


Question: Will we need to validate the household's address via address verification software?

  
Answer: The Offeror should propose their best value solution that is compliant with the Final Rule, Statement of Objectives, and RFP requirements. The Contractor needs to ensure only up to two coupons are distributed to a household as defined in Final Rule Section 301.2(k).

******************************************************

Question Number: 37


Question: If coupons are to be sent via USPS, will there be any discount / special agreement on postage costs?

  
Answer: As stated in RFP Section B "This is a Firm Fixed Price type contract for some services and a Fixed Price Indefinite Delivery Requirements type contract for certain portions." See RFP Section C.3 "The Contractor shall furnish the necessary personnel, material, equipment, services and facilities (except as otherwise specified): to perform the following Statement of Objectives and as referenced as attachments in Section J."

******************************************************

Question Number: 38


Question: Do we notify in-eligible households via the same channel they requested the coupon or can we standardize on using one channel for all communication (e.g. US Postal service)?

  
Answer: Neither. There is no RFP outcome or requirement on what channel to use. The Rule does not require a single channel for notifying in-eligible households. The Offeror can determine the best solution.

If the consumer calls the service center and speaks to a person there is no reason that the determination can't be made on the call. If the call goes to an interactive voice response unit, the software could answer no, or they could mail or call the consumer. If the consumer faxes or mails in a request, the Offeror can call them or mail the answer. If the consumer uses a web site, we assume the technical solution will include a site with an edit to determine eligibility, if not the Offeror can mail or call them.

The Offeror needs to propose a technical solution.

******************************************************

Question Number: 39


Question: For 30 day warranty service of the converter boxes, it is assumed that returns will be handled by the retailer. Post 30 days, do customers have to contact manufacturer of the converter box to obtain a replacement and the Service Center will not be responsible for assisting with this?

  
Answer: There is no defined outcome or requirement in RFP for post-sales consumer Service Center support.

******************************************************

Question Number: 40


Question: This paragraph indicates that in order to get the contract, Contractor must comply with all aspects the Final Rule. Proposing an alternative to the couponing system, would that nullify our ability to participate?

  
Answer: Since the acquisition approach is performance-based, the Contractor defines a technical approach in response to the RFP. The Government will not consider alternate proposals. See RFP Section M.2 CAR 1352.215-76 EVALUATION CRITERIA (March 2000) Terms and Conditions Certification. This is a pass-fail evaluation. Offerors who fail to provide such certification will no longer be considered for award.

******************************************************

Question Number: 41


Question: How many various manufacturers will be authorized to produce the converter boxes? Will they be allowed to manufacture a full line of converter boxes?

  
Answer: The Government has not limited the number of manufacturers who may participate in the program. Technical specifications and procedural rules for manufacturers who wish to produce converters eligible for purchase with the coupon are set forth in the Final Rule, e.g., Section 301.5 and Technical Appendices 1 and 2.  Manufacturers are free to market converter boxes which do not comply with the Final Rule and which will not be eligible for the Coupon Program.

*****************************************************

Question Number: 42


Question: Do the manufacturers have say or input in retail distribution channels? Can the Contractor determine all channels?

  
Answer: Distribution is an industry term for the provisioning, storing and shipping of products to retailers. RFP section C.2 clearly states that "convertor certification and provisioning is outside the scope of the acquisition."

******************************************************

Question Number: 43


Question: States "distribute eligible boxes to store front and online retailers for consumer purchase. A list of CECBs, including make and model number, will be maintained by NTIA and distributed by the Contractor to consumers and participating retailers for use in electronic point of sale (POS) systems." What is the expected frequency of this update?   Every month, every quarter etc?

  
Answer: Unknown at this time.  However, the Contractor is responsible to update and distribute the list as updates become available.

*****************************************************

Question Number: 44


Question: Are there defined service level standards and goals that have been set and require adherence? E.g. Coupon/card must be distributed to consumer in X business days.

  
Answer: See RFP clause L.7 Volume 1 Section 3.0 Quality Assurance Surveillance Plan: "The Offeror shall propose a Quality Assurance Surveillance Plan (QASP)that includes proposed performance measures/metrics, measurement timing and methods of collecting and reporting, and any other actions to ensure a comprehensive quality program that provides accurate, timely, and meaningful measurement and reporting of results."

******************************************************

Question Number: 45


Question: The following statement is confusing, "The Government's intent is to award a performance based contract without specifying how the work is to be accomplished". The Solicitation is specific in the coupon area as well as including small and large retailers and payment methodology. Can we suggest alternative methodologies?

  
Answer: No, The Offeror should propose their best value solution that is compliant with the Final Rule, Statement of Objectives, and RFP requirements.  The Solicitation is specific in the coupon area as well as including small and large retailers and payment methodology which is not in conflict with a Performance Based Contract.  It is up to the Contractor to propose how the Contractor intends to meet those objectives.

******************************************************

Question Number: 46


Question: The proposal asks that the successful bidder deliver a solution that measures consumer participation. Given the wide range of potential households that will qualify for the program, what are the metrics that we apply to this assessment?

  
Answer: See RFP clause L.7 Volume 1 Section 3.0 Quality Assurance Surveillance Plan: "The Offeror shall propose a Quality Assurance Surveillance Plan (QASP) that includes proposed performance measures/metrics, measurement timing and methods of collecting and reporting, and any other actions to ensure a comprehensive quality program that provides accurate, timely, and meaningful measurement and reporting of results."

******************************************************

Question Number: 47


Question: When will converter boxes be available?

  
Answer: Assume January 1, 2008

******************************************************

Question Number: 48


Question: When will the manufacturer's contract be awarded?

  
Answer: The Government will not enter into a manufacturer contract for converter boxes.

******************************************************

Question Number: 49


Question: Which "stakeholders" are they referring to in paragraph two (Page 14)?

  
Answer: There are a number of public documents, including the Final Rule, that identify various "stakeholders". See www.ntia.doc.gov.

******************************************************

Question Number: 50


Question: Under the sub bullet "compliant" program must adhere to all federal laws. Would this also be applicable to state laws specifically money transfer laws?

  
Answer: This is a Coupon Program. The Government not the Contractor makes payments directly to the retailer.

******************************************************

Question Number: 51


Question: For item #2e (Consumer Education Plan), what types of different media are expected and what other languages besides English and Spanish are expected?

  
Answer: General US Government Guidance for Recipients of Federal Funds at www.lep.gov/recip.html and Department of Commerce Limited English Proficient Persons Guidance at www.usdoj.gov/crt/cor/lep/commerceLepGuidanceReqComment.htm will be added into the RFP in the next amendment.

******************************************************

Question Number: 52


Question: For item #2g (Consumer Education Plan), the solicitation requests that Contractor "devise measures of the Coupon Program's progress in educating consumers and report these metrics in the Coupon Program Dashboard." Is this a request to randomly sample the entire US population to determine the penetration/efficacy of the education campaign?

  
Answer: This is not a request to conduct any particular type of testing or analysis.  A "random sample of the entire US population to determine the penetration/efficacy of the education campaign" may be one way to measure progress but it is not the only way and may or may not be the most effective way. The Offeror is supposed to develop what it thinks it the best way to measure progress in educating consumers.  See for example, RFP clause L.7 Volume 1 Section 3.0 Quality Assurance Surveillance Plan: "The Offeror shall propose a Quality Assurance Surveillance Plan (QASP) that includes proposed performance measures/metrics, measurement timing and methods of collecting and reporting, and any other actions to ensure a comprehensive quality program that provides accurate, timely, and meaningful measurement and reporting of results."

******************************************************

Question Number: 53


Question: For item #2h, what is the projected cost of the converter boxes? Throughout the document, there are indicators that perhaps these will be priced under $30 and other points within document that they will be over $40. What is the projected range?

  
Answer: Retailers will set the price for converter boxes.  The reference in the RFP is to the requirement that if the unit price is below $40, the coupon value is the actual unit price (below $40) and not that the consumer will receive the difference in cash from the unit price and $40.

the cost of the converter box is not included in the Offeror's cost proposal

******************************************************

Question Number: 54


Question: For item #3g, can you further define the content expected in the "exception" reports?

  
Answer: The Offeror should propose the "exception" reports based on their solution. RFP section C.3.3.1 provides outcomes that need to be considered.

******************************************************

Question Number: 55


Question: For item #4, distribution points are referred to as small and large retailers can contractor proactively approach merchants, and establish volume thresholds?

  
Answer: Section C.2 BACKGROUND states that "Participation by manufacturers and retailers is voluntary and the Contractor should promote participation while meeting NTIA's other objectives." As stated in RFP Section C.3.3.1 TECHNICAL SERVICES OUTCOMES AND OBJECTIVES, 4, m, the Government expects the contractor to "maintain viable relationships with a variety of retailers (e.g., large chains, small consumer electronic specialty shops, "bricks and mortar" and online) through appropriate, commercially acceptable agreements and/or practices."

******************************************************

Question Number: 56


Question: For item #4, are retailers with multiple locations required to submit a Retailer Data Collection Form (Attachment J. XI) for each location?

  
Answer: No. Retailers may submit information on behalf of all locations.

******************************************************

Question Number: 57


Question: For item #4, is there an acceptable electronic method for submitting a Retailer Data Collection Form (Attachment J. XI)?

  
Answer: There is not a required electronic method for submitting retailer information. However the Offeror may propose one if they choose to.

*************************** *****************************

Question Number: 58


Question: For item #4, beyond signing a Retailer Data Collection Form (Attachment J. XI) are there any additional requirements for a retailer to be recognized as certified and participating in the program?

  
Answer: See Final Rule, e.g., Section 301.6

*************************** *****************************

Question Number: 59


Question: For item #4, can a certified retailer be "decertified" for something as simple as the lack of inventory and unwillingness to carry inventory?

  
Answer: "...retailers are expected to follow commercially reasonable practices in ordering and managing inventories" of converters. See Final Rule e.g., Section 301.6 and discussion Section II Discussion, G. Retailer Participation, a. Retailer Obligations to Predict or Meet Demand, paragraphs 106-108.

*************************** *****************************

Question Number: 60


Question: For item #4, how do we obtain the audit information (relating to Attachment J.XI item 3) to maintain our database of certified retailers?

  
Answer: See Final Rule e.g., Section 301.6 and II. Discussion G, Retailer Participation, f. Payment Terms, 124. "To ensure payment to the retailer and provide a closed loop audit trail, NTIA will require retailers to provide positive verification that payment has been received for authorized coupon redemption transactions. With respect to retaining hard copies of sales information for one year, in view of the decision to allow the use of ECCs, NTIA will not require retailers to retain hard copies of this information. However, for auditing purposes, sales information must be retained for at least one year and to the extent that retailers choose to retain it electronically, they should be prepared to convert it to a hard copy format if requested by NTIA."

******************************************************

Question Number: 61


Question: For item #4, is a household with cable or satellite service with all TVs connected to that service still eligible for coupons?

  
Answer: Yes, NTIA will permit open eligibility on a first-come, first-served basis while the Initial Funds are available. See Final Rule Section 301.3 and Section II. A, Eligible U.S. Households, 9 and 21.

******************************************************

Question Number: 63


Question: For item #4, are there criminal penalties for fraud as defined by this SOLICITATION by consumers or retailers? And if the Contractors responsible for bringing action or additional involvement?

  
Answer: See Final Rule e.g., Section II Discussion, G. Retailer Participation, b. Legal Liability and Additional Cost for Retailer Participation 110. "The Act did not include any specific government remedies or civil or criminal penalties for violations or non-compliance with the statute or the regulations promulgated by NTIA thereunder. Retailers should be aware, however, that other statutes provide for civil or criminal penalties for wrongdoing in connection with federal programs such as the Coupon Program. For example, the False Claims Act establishes penalties for "any person who knowingly presents, or causes to be presented, to an officer of employee of the United States Government . . . a false or fraudulent claim for payment or approval."? NTIA clarifies that it does not intend to sanction retailers for unintentional non-compliance or error. NTIA encourages retailers and other participants in the Coupon Program to familiarize themselves with the laws that impose liability for making false statements to the Federal government, for making false claims, or engaging in other activities that violate Federal law.

******************************************************

Question Number: 64


Question: For item #4a, would POS modification assistance be part of the funding allocated? Or would merchants be expected to convert or alter POS on their own dime? Could the contractor establish this rule?

  
Answer: There is no restriction in the Final Rule or RFP to assist and pay for modifications. The Contractor may enter into a commercial agreement with retailers. The Offeror should propose their best value solution that is compliant with the Final Rule, Statement of Objectives, and RFP requirements.

******************************************************

Question Number: 65


Question: For item #4e, is alternative redemption and payment means is that for the retailer or the contractor to establish?

  
Answer: The Government assumes that not all retailers will have the same level of POS. The Contractor, not retailers, must propose a solution. As stated in the RFP "The Contractor may enter into a commercial agreement with retailers." The Offeror should propose their best value solution that is compliant with the Final Rule, Statement of Objectives, and RFP requirements.

******************************************************

Question Number: 66


Question: For item #5d, if lost/stolen cards are redeemed prior to consumer notification that card is lost or stolen, who is liable?

  
Answer: After award, the Program Office will develop guidelines addressing such circumstances for the contractor to use during the performance of this contract.

******************************************************

Question Number: 67


Question: For item# 5i, if unit costs under $40 will remainder of balance be allowed to cover taxes?

  
Answer: The Government does not think this issue should affect Offerors' technical or price proposals and will provide guidance at a later point.

******************************************************

Question Number: 68


Question: For item #6, have you defined the call center hours of operation or are you open to suggestions?

  
Answer: The Service Center is 24x7 to handle consumer coupon requests (telephone, fax, mail and web site) and distribution, and retailer redemption and payment transactions for all 50 states and US Territories. The Offeror must propose a solution that provides this RFP outcome.

******************************************************

Question Number: 69


Question: For item #6, is the requirement to have 24/7 coverage via live agent or would a self service option (e.g. IVR) be acceptable?

  
Answer: The Offeror should propose their best value solution that is compliant with the Final Rule, Statement of Objectives, and RFP requirements.  See question 68.

******************************************************

Question Number: 70


Question: For item #6, will a separate web site need to be designed, developed and maintained or will the NTIA.doc.gov website be the primary site with links to the coupon program website?

  
Answer: Yes, a separate website must be provided. The Government will not provide the web site under item #6.

******************************************************

Question Number: 71


Question: For item #6, is NTIA setting up a dedicated toll free number that they will "own" or are they looking for the contractor to set up a number? Will you require a separate number for retailers?

  
Answer: NTIA is using a toll-free number until Contractor is up and running. The number is 1 888 DTV 2009. The Offeror must provide a number or the same number as part of their solution. See RFP Section C.3 "The Contractor shall furnish the necessary personnel, material, equipment, services and facilities (except as otherwise specified): to perform the following Statement of Objectives and as referenced as attachments in Section J."

******************************************************

Question Number: 72


Question: How do you define consumer education related to the coupon program?

  
Answer: See RFP Section C, it clearly defines the Coupon Program and Consumer Education goals, objectives and outcomes.

******************************************************

Question Number: 73


Question: What are the metrics for success?

  
Answer: The government is not specifying the metrics for success.  However, please see RFP clause L.7 Volume 1 Section 3.0 Quality Assurance Surveillance Plan:"The Offeror shall propose a Quality Assurance Surveillance Plan (QASP)that includes proposed performance measures/metrics, measurement timing and methods of collecting and reporting, and any other actions to ensure comprehensive quality program that provides accurate, timely, and meaningful measurement and reporting of results."

******************************************************

Question Number: 74


Question: What do you mean regarding to "provide support for NTIA partnership activities, including materials, meeting logistics and organization"? This doesn't sound like consumer education but it does sound like an NTIA administrative activity.

  
Answer: These functions are not administrative. They involve the Contractor organizing specific activities and creating specific materials to facilitate consumer education. Since partnerships with intermediaries is an important component of reaching our target audiences, these are critical functions for which offerors should propose specific solutions.

******************************************************

Question Number: 75


Question: Can any of the funds be used for the production of public service announcements and their distribution?

  
Answer: It is not the intent of this solicitation to purchase media ads. The Offeror should propose their best value solution that is compliant with the Final Rule, Statement of Objectives, and RFP requirements.

******************************************************

Question Number: 76


Question: Has NOAA considered designating a preferred vendor for the consumer education part of the RFP?

  
Answer: No

******************************************************

Question Number: 77


Question: May funds beyond the $5 million be used to support the administrative requirements of a consumer education effort?

  
Answer: No. The $5m is the total Coupon Program value for SLIN 0001AD and SLIN 0002AA.

*****************************************************

Question Number: 78


Question: Please provide more information regarding your stated requirement of tying the consumer education effort for the coupon program into the broader digital transition?

  
Answer: See Section C.3.2, Program Vision and Goals.

********************************************************

Question Number: 79


Question: Page 15 of the RFP states that the consumer educations materials need to be targeted to a diverse audience "including Spanish and other non-English speakers."  If materials need to be produced in any other languages, which languages are required?

  
Answer: General US Government Guidance for Recipients of Federal Funds at www.lep.gov/recip.html and Department of Commerce Limited English Proficient Persons Guidance at www.usdoj.gov/crt/cor/lep/commerceLepGuidanceReqComment.htm will be added into the RFP in the next amendment.

*************************** *****************************

Question Number: 80


Question: Page 15 of the RFP 2.0 outlines the Consumer Education Plan. We assume that the term "plan" is synonymous with the term "program," and that this work stream requires not only a written strategy but also implementation support for consumer education. Is this correct?

  
Answer: Yes

******************************************************

Question Number: 81


Question: Are we correct in assuming that the government's intent is for the contractor to provide assistance in understanding PO requirements for participation in the Program, and subsequent testing and certification activities, but does not include assistance in making and implementing changes to retailer POS systems/software?

  
Answer: No. There is no restriction in the Final Rule or RFP to assist and pay for modifications. The Contractor can enter into a commercial agreement with retailers. The Offeror should propose its best value solution that is compliant with the Final Rule, Statement of Objectives, and RFP requirements.

******************************************************

Question Number: 82


Question: Does the government require 24/7 coverage for live operator telephone assistance?

  
Answer: The Service Center is 24x7 to handle consumer coupon requests (telephone, fax, mail and web site) and distribution, and retailer redemption and payment transactions for all 50 states and US Territories. The Offeror must propose a solution that provides this RFP outcome.

******************************************************

Question Number: 83


Question: Should the website have the ability to process coupon requests on-line or just offer a download of a coupon request form that can be printed off and mailed in?

  
Answer: It is up to the Offeror; there is no particular requirement. The Offeror should propose their best value solution that is compliant with the Final Rule, Statement of Objectives, and RFP requirements.

******************************************************

Question Number: 84


Question: Should the telephone option offer live operator support or only recorded messages about the program and an option to request a coupon request form be mailed to them?

  
Answer: The Government is looking for a best value solution and does not require a specific method of handling calls. The Offeror needs to propose which solution, live operator support or only recorded messages, provides best value. The Service Center is 24x7 to handle consumer coupon requests (telephone, fax, mail and web site) and distribution, and retailer redemption and payment transactions for all 50 states and US Territories. The Offeror must propose a solution that provides this RFP outcome.

******************************************************

Question Number: 85


Question: If there is live operator support, should it be 24/7 or a lesser coverage?

  
Answer: Section C.3.3.1 - Technical Outcomes #6 requires that Coupon Program system processing operate 24/7 but does not specify a live operator on that basis. The Offeror should propose their best value solution that is compliant with the Final Rule, Statement of Objectives, and RFP requirements.

******************************************************

Question Number: 86


Question: What languages need to be available on the telephone? Coverage for the Deaf as well?

  
Answer: General US Government Guidance for Recipients of Federal Funds at www.lep.gov/recip.html and Department of Commerce Limited English Proficient Persons Guidance at www.usdoj.gov/crt/cor/lep/commerceLepGuidanceReqComment.htm will be added into the RFP in the next amendment. The Offeror should propose their best value solution that is compliant with the Final Rule, Statement of Objectives, and RFP requirements and constraints.

******************************************************

Question Number: 87


Question: What languages do the coupon requests need to be in? (i.e., Spanish, Braille, Mandarin)

  
Answer: General US Government Guidance for Recipients of Federal Funds at www.lep.gov/recip.html and Department of Commerce Limited English Proficient Persons Guidance at www.usdoj.gov/crt/cor/lep/commerceLepGuidanceReqComment.htm will be added into the RFP in the next amendment. The Offeror should propose their best value solution that is compliant with the Final Rule, Statement of Objectives, and RFP requirements.  Offeror must also responsible to be compliant with Section C.5 reference Section 508 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1993.

******************************************************

Question Number: 88


Question: Is the proposed solution required to handle people who cannot read, or who may have other physical or mental handicaps?

  
Answer: As stated in Section C.5, Constraints, Offerors must comply with Section 508 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1993. The Offeror should propose their best value solution that is compliant with the Final Rule, Statement of Objectives, and RFP requirements.

******************************************************

Question Number: 89


Question: Para 4.b states "distributing, inputting, and updating lists of converter boxes."  When will the list of eligible converters be frozen?

  
Answer: The Contractor is responsible to update and distribute the list as updates become available. The Government does not anticipate the list will be frozen.

******************************************************

Question Number: 90


Question: Paragraph 2.e states "provide materials targeted to a wide variety of media and for diverse audiences, including Spanish and other non-English speakers." Can the government limit and/or identify the languages to be supported?

Does this requirement for multiple languages also apply to help desk support?

  
Answer: General US Government Guidance for Recipients of Federal Funds at www.lep.gov/recip.html and Department of Commerce Limited English Proficient Persons Guidance at www.usdoj.gov/crt/cor/lep/commerceLepGuidanceReqComment.htm will be added into the RFP in the next amendment

******************************************************

Question Number: 91


Question: Paragraph 3.f states "multiple language requests are supported."  Can the government limit and/or identify the languages to be supported?

  
Answer: General US Government Guidance for Recipients of Federal Funds at www.lep.gov/recip.html and Department of Commerce Limited English Proficient Persons Guidance at www.usdoj.gov/crt/cor/lep/commerceLepGuidanceReqComment.htm will be added into the RFP in the next amendment.

******************************************************

Question Number: 92


Question: Can the government provide the criteria for retailer certification?

  
Answer: The Government has provided criteria for retailer certification. See Final Rule Section 301.6 (b) which clearly provides the criteria for retailer certification.

******************************************************

Question Number: 93


Question: Subsection 4 states the program must "monitor retailer compliance." What is envisioned by retailer compliance?  What factors should be monitored?

  
Answer: See Final Rule e.g., Section 301.6 and Section II. Discussion G, Retailer Participation, e, Retailer Certification and Procedures.  The Offeror should propose their best value solution that is compliant with the Final Rule, Statement of Objectives, and RFP requirements.

******************************************************

Question Number: 94


Question: Subsection 4 states the program must "resolve retailer issues such as late application requests."  Is there a cut-off date for retail applications for certification?

  
Answer: See Final Rule Section 301.6.  Retailers must apply for certification between June 1, 2007 and March 31, 2008.

******************************************************

Question Number: 95


Question: Paragraph 5.h, the contractor is asked to monitor retailer generated reports on payments received. Are the participating retailers required to provide this report to the contractor? How often, over what period and what is allowable lag time? What other requirements do participating retailers have?

  
Answer: C.3.3.1, 5.h is an outcome for the Contractor's financial processing system that accepts and authorizes retailer requests for redemption and payments. See Final Rule Section 301.6 and II. Discussion G, Retailer Participation, e, Retailer Certification and Procedures

******************************************************

Question Number: 96


Question: Paragraph 5.j implies that contractor must keep track of the sale price of the converter and reduce the amount of the subsidy if the retail price of the converter is less than $ 40.  Is this true? Thus, if a retailer is running a sale and happens to lower the retail price or if another organization is running a coupon program, then the NTIA coupon reduces its face value?  Do retailers need to report sale price of converters?

  
Answer: The redemption and payment Transaction must be compliant with Final Rule 301.4(a ). The Contractor may enter into a commercial agreement with retailers. The Offeror should propose their best value solution that is compliant with the Final Rule, Statement of Objectives, and RFP requirements.

******************************************************

Question Number: 97


Question: For objective #10, would retailers be required to report inventory directly to contractor?

  
Answer: No. There is no requirement that retailers report inventory directly to the contractor. However, a Dashboard Element included at J.VII 1.3.4.1.4.(2.) tracks the "Number of and model numbers of converter boxes sold by retailers" which should be captured by the contractor's system when the coupon redemption is authorized. The retailer's POS has the list of certified models and the Contractor approves the transaction including data on which model was purchased.  Additionally, the Contractor is expected to maintain viable relationships with the retailers through appropriate, commercially acceptable agreements or practices which may include inventory reports.  If retailers provide inventory data, it must be handled appropriately pursuant to RFP Section 3.3.2 10. "Maintain confidential treatment of non-aggregated sales, inventory, or other competitively sensitive information."

*******************************************************

Question Number: 98


Question: For objective #12, for the statement "supporting unforeseen project assignments", could these be invoiced accordingly? Depending on the nature of resources required to remedy the issue?

  
Answer: No. RFP will be changed to: "Support urgent, unforeseen project assignments directly related to program performance to quickly mobilize an adequate workforce to address any performance issue."

********************************************************

Question Number: 99


Question: Are any systems within the NTIA that will require a data feed of the operational data? Do we need to interconnect with the DOC network or systems?

  
Answer: The Government will require file transfers for redemption and payment information.  There is no requirement to interconnect with DOC networks or systems.

********************************************************

Question Number: 100


Question: The NTIA Coupon Program is a complex, nationally important program, with a wider than normal breadth of work, necessitating the subcontracting of signifi?cant pieces of work. As stated in the referenced RFP section, ?special expertise? is required in a range of subject ?natters, more so than in other projects of this size. This condition, when combined with the non-traditional nature of much of the special work (which complicates efforts to identify qualified firms), results in a situation where achieving the aggressive small business goals is very difficult. Would the NTIA reconsider its aggressive small business objectives, in light of these difficulties, and adjust the goals downward accordingly? Alternatively, would the NTJA consider leaving the goals unchanged, but eliminating this area as an evaluation factor or significantly reducing the weighting?

  
Answer: We understand that the small business goals and objectives may be challenging. However the goals and relative weights are equally challenging for all, and will not be changed as evaluation factors.

******************************************************

Question Number: 101


Question: This unique program requires the issuance of a high volume of tightly controlled, secure "coupons", and could, depending on a bidder's solution, include commercial banking transactions. By their nature, and because of the extremely high volumes, these two services do not lend themselves to small business participation at the lust tier. If attempted at the first tier the volumes would drive revenues that would quickly exceed the NAICS size standards. Breaking this work into smaller pieces would create security and control problems.  Because these aspects of the programs are so commercial, and inappropriate for first tier small business subcontracting, would NTIA consider excluding them from the goal calculations?

  
Answer: This is an area with multiple options or potential solutions, and we do not want to limit those opportunities by restricting methodology or business approaches unnecessarily.  Since this consideration will apply to all equally, there does not seem to be a reason to change the small business goals and objectives as stated in the RFP evaluation criteria.

******************************************************

Question Number: 102


Question: Could we have tiered pricing arrangement? If response is greater than anticipated and costs overrun allotted spend, could there be an appeal for additional funding?

  
Answer: No. As stated in RFP Section B "This is a Firm Fixed Price type contract for some services and a Fixed Price Indefinite Delivery Requirements type contract for certain portions".

******************************************************

Question Number: 103


Question: If solution is different that coupon model, can merchant incur normal credit or debit processing fees?

  
Answer: No solution other than the coupon model is permitted by law.  The retailer, not the Government, is responsible for normal credit or debit processing fees.

******************************************************

Question Number: 104


Question: If Government extends the program, can the extension be billed accordingly? Can contactor or subcontractor refuse participation?

  
Answer: See RFP Section C. 4 Period of Performance "If determined to be in the best interest of the Government, any options to extend the contract shall be exercised in accordance with FAR 52.217-8 and 52-217-9, and by modification to the contract.  The Government shall notify the Contractor, in writing, no later than March 15, 2009 as to whether the Government intends to extend the contract period of performance and implement its authorization in accordance with the changes clause."

Pricing of options is explained in the RFP and the contractor can not refuse to perform if it is in the contract.

******************************************************

Question Number: 105


Question: Payment of Postage and Fees, if unforeseen postage increases occur, can fees be adjusted accordingly?

  
Answer: No.

As stated in RFP Section B "This is a Firm Fixed Price type contract for some services and a Fixed Price Indefinite Delivery Requirements type contract for certain portions".  See RFP Section C.3 "The Contractor shall furnish the necessary personnel, material, equipment, services and facilities (except as otherwise specified): to perform the following Statement of Objectives and as referenced as attachments in Section J."

******************************************************

Question Number: 106


Question: When do you expect to hold the OCD?

  
Answer: The Offeror defines the OCD and schedule based on its solution.

******************************************************

Question Number: 107


Question: When do you expect the contract to be awarded

  
Answer: As stated in Section F.2 and F.3, On or about August 15, 2007.

******************************************************

Question Number: 108


Question: Deliverables, Communication Plan means the internal or external communications plans?

  
Answer: See RFP Section L.7 VOLUME 1 SECTION 4.0 - MANAGEMENT PLAN. Do not understand your reference to internal or external since the RFP clearly states "(5)A communication plan indicating all communication and coordination paths and scope of communications and coordination between the Offeror’s project team (including executive leadership) and other project stakeholders."

******************************************************

Question Number: 109


Question: What is the expectation of the technology demonstration that is required 15 days after contract award? We are assuming that this would be a showing of our capabilities only and not a proof of concept that would not have been built at this point.

  
Answer: No. Section F-7 Deliverables requires the draft Start-up Plan 15 days after contract award.

******************************************************

Question Number: 110


Question: CAR 1352.237.71 Security Processing Requirements, are the requirements in this section to be submitted with proposal or post award?

  
Answer: Post award, if necessary.

******************************************************

Question Number: 111


Question: After contract is awarded, contractor and subcontractor would be required to provide within 5 days various compliance requirements (IT security, etc).  What would be the issuer's liability if the contractor or another subcontractor were to violate any of the requirements set forth in this section?

  
Answer: Who is issuing the coupons?  If it is the prime or its sub, then they are liable.

******************************************************

Question Number: 112


Question: Are we correct in assuming that the 508 requirement applies only to the public-facing components of the contractor's solution?

  
Answer: As stated in Section C.5, CONSTRAINTS, Offerors must comply with Section 508 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1993.

******************************************************

Question Number: 113


Question: Are we correct in assuming that existing transaction processing systems that have been in place for a number of years are considered COTS?

  
Answer: Yes

*****************************************************

Question Number: 115


Question: Performance Measurements, on withholding of funds for contractor or sub failing to perform, payment may be withheld. Can subcontractors appeal to government for payment on completed work?

  
Answer: Any appeal must be in compliance with the Contract Disputes Act, see 41 USC Sec. 601, et. seq.

******************************************************

Question Number: 118


Question: FAR 52.232-32 Performance-Based Payments, can issuer request funding more than once per month?

  
Answer: Contractor can submit invoices for Performance Milestones/Deliverables in accordance with FAR 52.232-32 referenced in Section I.81 of the RFP.

*************************** 1***************************

Question Number: 120


Question: The template for past performance questionnaire includes "FFP" as the Contract Type. Does this imply that all past performance references must be for FFP contracts?

  
Answer: Attachment J.IV includes all contract types.

******************************************************

Question Number: 121


Question: Can past performance references include projects that are still in progress?

  
Answer: Yes

******************************************************

Question Number: 122


Question: Section 1.3.3.2.1.7 states that the "...Dashboard must display and trend at a minimum, the following:  Number of attempts to return a converter box to a retailer for a cash refund or for credit towards the purchase of another item during this reporting period." Can the government provide further clarification regarding what defines an "Attempt to return a converter box"?

  
Answer: The redemption and payment Transaction must be compliant with Final Rule, e.g., Section 301.4 and 301.6. The Contractor may enter into a commercial agreement including defining terms with retailers.

******************************************************

Question Number: 123


Question: Section 1.1 states "NTIA requires visibility into four (4) specific areas:" and "monitoring of key waste, fraud and abuse indicators."  Can the government identify the specific "fraud and abuse indicators" to be displayed on the dashboard or are these to be proposed by the respondent?

  
Answer: The Offeror should propose the specific fraud and abuse indicators based on their solution and the RFP defined financial processing outcomes and Section J requirements.

******************************************************

Question Number: 124


Question: Section 1.2 states that a key objective of the on-line portal is to "Provides secure and controlled access to appropriate individuals."  Can the government identify the total number of individuals that will require this secure access

  
Answer: For the standard on-line portal to Coupon Program for monitoring operations, performance and reporting to which this question refers,the Government expects access for the program office to include program office support contractors and senior NTIA and program officials. The total number of Government authorized Government program associated IDs will be determined after contract award.

******************************************************

Question Number: 125


Question: Section 1.3.3.1.1.2.7 states "Particiption of retailers by geographic area."  Can the government provide a definition of the "geographic area" to be reported on?  Is it zip code, county, state?

  
Answer: No. The Offeror should define the geographic area based on their solution. The Government is looking for an innovative presentation of retailer participation that shows the retailer store locations available for consumers to travel to in a specific area.

******************************************************

Question Number: 126


Question: Given that it is one of NTIA's goals (Page 14, C.3-2) to ---"utilize the existing industry infrastructure and use commercially available components to support the Offers Coupon Program- distribution and redemption solution." And that it is the government's objective (Page 16, C 3.1.4.a.) to have a contractor support a retailer participation and certification program to include: 'Working with existing store front retailers and on-line internet retailers to utilize current industry processing tools and systems, consistent with reasonable commercial standards', .." your requirement to have the Treasury reimburse retailers directly excludes using some of the most prevalent, efficient and effective means to support the coupon program. Please allow contractors to meet this objective by proposing the most prevalent, efficient, and effective means to reimburse the retailers.

  
Answer: The Government, by law, must obligate, authorize, certify and make payments. The statutory requirement is that the Department of the Treasury (not a contractor) disburses public money; and (2) that public funds not be held outside the US Treasury. RFP Section J, Attachment J.VIII meets the statutory requirement.

******************************************************

Question Number: 127


Question: In "1.3.3.1.1.2.10 Distribution notices of any known converter box supply and demand issues in a geographic area for the reporting period," it is unclear who will be reporting the "issues". Is this a question of consumer complaint? Is this an issue of retail distribution? Or, is this a question of manufacturing shortfalls?

  
Answer: The Government expects the Contractor to collect issues from all available sources including consumers, retailers and stakeholders. The Government may also provide information to the Contractor from manufacturers (including supply and distribution issues) to be posted. As stated in RFP Section C.3.3.1 TECHNICAL SERVICES OUTCOMES AND OBJECTIVES, 4, m, the Government expects the contractor to "maintain viable relationships with a variety of retailers (e.g., large chains, small consumer electronic specialty shops, "bricks and mortar" and online) through appropriate, commercially acceptable agreements and/or practices."

******************************************************

Question Number: 128


Question: In "1.3.3.1.1.3.7 Participation of households by geographic area", are we to compare the actual households who have requested coupons to the total population of all households? How granular is the "geography" that we are reporting on (i.e. what defines a geography?)

  
Answer: The Government is looking for an innovative solution consistent with Attachment J.VII. The Offeror should define the geographic area that provides a meaningful view of household participation. There is no requirement to compare household participation to total population in a specific area.

******************************************************

Question Number: 129


Question: In "1.3.3.3.3.4 Peak processing time per day/week/month," what is being measured? Number of transactions at a time of day? Please clarify.

  
Answer: The requirement is to measure Service Center Workload functions. The Offeror needs to report meaningful peak processing functions that reflect the various workloads within the Service Center. Transaction types is one of the functions to be measured, however the requirement is not limited to transactions.

******************************************************

Question Number: 130


Question: Is the section "Performance Work Statement" listed in the table (bottom page 56) the same as Section C.3.3.1 SOO sections 1-6 listed as "Technical covering Statement of Work" L.7 (a) (1) (i). Are we to assume that the page limits are also the same?

  
Answer: The Performance Work Statement is not the same as the Statement of Objectives therefore do not make the assumption.  L.7 (1) (i) Volume I table consists of 6 rows which give the break out for page limitations which fall under C3.3.1

******************************************************

Question Number: 131


Question: CAR 1353.215-71 Proposal Preparation, under Volume 1 Section 6.0 ï¿½ Key Personnel Page 61), the terms "Offeror" and "Contractor" are used in this section. Do they share the same definition?

  
Answer: The terms have the same meaning in the referenced context.  The Offeror is the company submitting a proposal in response to the RFP.  The Contractor is the successful Offeror.  The "Contractor" will not be allowed to make substitution to Key Personnel except in accordance with the clause.

******************************************************

Question Number: 132


Question: L.7 and L.9 conflict. L7 allows submission of questions up until proposal submission while L.9 cuts off questions at COB April 5, 2007-  Because this is a very complex bid, we recommend that you allow submission of questions up until proposal delivery, recognizing that there may not be sufficient time to respond to questions submitted just before the proposal due date.

  
Answer: L.7 will be modified to reflect an April 16, 2007 cutoff on questions.

******************************************************

Question Number: 133


Question: C.3.3.1 TECHNICAL SERVICES OUTCOMES AND OBJECTIVES, Section 3C requires "*A system to process consumer coupon requests and coupon distributions" which "prevents fraudulent coupon requests.

  
Answer: The question appears to be a statement. The Offeror should propose their best value solution that is compliant with the Final Rule, Statement of Objectives, and RFP requirements.

******************************************************

Question Number: 134


Question: C.3.3.1 TECHNICAL SERVICES OUTCOMES AND OBJECTIVES, Section 3C requires "*A system to process consumer coupon requests and coupon distributions" which "prevents fraudulent coupon requests.

Based upon other government-funded benefits similar to the DTV Coupon program, we have identified a variety of ways in which individuals may seek to fraudulently obtain coupons under the program. Vendors exist in the marketplace with proven methods to mitigate such fraudulent requests. However, if presented only the name and address of the individual making the request, vendors will be very limited in the scope of fraud mitigation efforts it can undertake to meet this requirement.

Is the government open to allowing vendors to obtain additional information from benefit applicants to assist in combating fraudulent coupon requests?

  
Answer: See Final Rule 301 Section II. Discussion C. Application Process para. 21. "The Final Rule requires applicants to provide NTIA with only the information necessary for NTIA to fulfill a coupon request. The government may only ask those questions that have been approved pursuant to an OMB information approval process. Accordingly, applicants for coupons must provide the following: (1) name; (2) address;

(3) the number of coupons that they require; and (4) a certification as to whether they receive cable, satellite, or other paid television service. NTIA is sensitive to privacy concerns and is not requesting unnecessary

personal identification information, such as social security numbers.

*************************** 1***************************

Question Number: 135


Question: Can the government indicate how fraud mitigation will be evaluated within the stated evaluation criteria? How important is fraud mitigation at the various stages of program implementation, such as coupon request, coupon distribution, coupon redemption?

  
Answer: RFP Section M.2 CAR 1352.215-76 EVALUATION CRITERIA (March 2000)FACTOR 1 - TECHNICAL clearly defines under item C. The proposed technical solution will be evaluated for the degree to which it presents risks to Coupon Program objectives and requirements and the scope and effectiveness of mitigation strategies proposed by the Offeror. Fraud mitigation is important and is one of the Coupon Program goals, see RFP Section C.3.2 PROGRAM VISION AND GOALS.

*************************** 1***************************

Question Number: 136


Question: Can the government further clarify the definition of a household?

  
Answer: See Final Rule 301 e.g., Section II. Disussion, A. Eligible U.S. Households.

*************************** 1***************************

Question Number: 137


Question: Other than English and Spanish, what languages does the NTIA require contractors to support on this program?

  
Answer: See General US Government Guidance for Recipients of Federal Funds @ www.lep.gov/recip.html and Department of Commerce Limited English Proficient Persons Guidance @ www.usdoj.gov/crt/cor/lep/commerceLepGuidanceReqComment.htm will be added into the RFP in the next amendment.

*************************** *****************************

Question Number: 138


Question: Will NTIA use a Government Permit Number to pay the postage for mailings and if not what is the preferred method?

  
Answer: See RFP Section C.3 ‘The Contractor shall furnish the necessary personnel, material, equipment, services and facilities (except as otherwise specified): to perform the following Statement of Objectives and as referenced as attachments in Section J.’

*************************** *****************************

Question Number: 139


Question: The RFP identifies ‘additional funding of $510M upon certification to Congress’  These funds are to support an additional 11.25M coupons (for a total of 33.5M).  At $40/coupon 11.5M coupons totals $450M.  What will the $60M be applied toward? Will the Government utilize these funds in any means that would be beneficial for the contractor to understand?

  
Answer: The Act authorizes initial funding of $990m including up to $100m for NTIA program and contract administration. The additional funding of $510m includes up to an additional $60m for administration for a total of up to $160m. Administration funds are to be used by NTIA to run the coupon program including payments to the contract and include up to $5 million for consumer education.

*************************** *****************************

Question Number: 140


Question: Does the Government wish all outgoing coupons/education materials to be sent via first class mail or best value?

  
Answer: By law all coupons have to be mailed via US Postal Service. RFP Section 3.3.1 (2) required materials/instructions be provided with the coupon(s). It is up to the Offeror to determine the best way to meet the RFP objectives.

******************************************************

Question Number: 141


Question: Will the contractor be allowed to certify retailers electronically or must the contractor obtain a signed ‘Retailer Data Collection Form’?

  
Answer: Contractor may use electronic methods to certify retailers so long as Retailer Data Collection form is used, i.e., Attachment J.XI.

******************************************************

Question Number: 142


Question: What are the “performance schedules” in note (1) of the table? That terminology is not used elsewhere. Does it refer to the Master Implementation Schedule? Please clarify exactly what these schedules are that can be excluded from the page count.

                                                
Answer: The term “performance schedules” in note (1) to the table in L.7 refers to the Master Implementation Schedule.

******************************************************

Question Number: 143


Question: What is the NAICS code for this solicitation?  This information will be helpful in identifying the size standard for small business participation.

  
Answer: The NAICS is 541611.  The size standard is 6.5M.

******************************************************

Question Number: 144


Question: Refer to page 30 section H.4 CAR 1352.209-71 Organizational Conflict of Interest.  What potential organizational conflict of interest has the Contracting Officer identified with respect to this procurement (see FAR 9.504(a))? If none has been identified, please remove the clause as our review of the work statement has disclosed that none of the work proscribed in FAR 9.505 is required to be performed.

  
Answer: Examples of Organizational Conflicts of Interest might include but are not limited to:

1. Interests, arrangements, or relationships with participating retail organizations, outside the scope of a contract resulting from this RFP, that could be perceived as benefiting from the work performed under such a contract.

2. Interests, arrangements, or relationships with participating manufacturing organizations that could be perceived as benefiting from the work performed under a contract resulting from this RFP.

3. The clause found on page 30 section H.4 CAR 1352.209-71 will remain in place.  If there has been no conflict of interest leaving the clause in place does not effect the contract, however if a conflict of interest is found then the clause protects the government and all interested parties.

******************************************************

Question Number: 145


Question: Did the Government intend to include the Harmless from Liability clause in the solicitation?  If so, could you please clarify the intent of this clause as per the performance of this contract?  The inclusion of such a clause could pose risk to the successful contractor given the real possibility of retailer and consumer fraud.  Would the contractor be liable for such fraud?

  
Answer: Please see the answer to question #114.  This is a mandatory CAR clause.

******************************************************

Question Number: 146


Question: Will the Government provide any telecommunications access and/or 800 services to this program under the FTS contract?

  
Answer: No

******************************************************

Question Number: 147


Question: Does the 24x7 communication require live operators or can it be an IVR response?  If operators are required can the contractor staff for limited hours and cover at predefined off-hours by IVR?

  
Answer: The Government does not have a preferred solution. The Offeror's solution will be evaluated on its own merits as to how effective it is in meeting the requirement.

******************************************************

Question Number: 148


Question: If a customer has purchased a valid converter box before receiving a coupon and has a receipt can they receive payment like a vendor?  If not, will the retailer be required to provide the customer reimbursement for coupons if receipt and coupons presented?  If so, how far back would purchases be eligible?

  
Answer: No to both questions.

******************************************************

Question Number: 150


Question: Section F.7, Deliverables requires a Security Plan draft in 60 days after award, and final 90 days after award and a Contingency Plan required 90 days after award. Section H.15 (c) (2)  requires submission of a C&A Package to include the Security Plan, and test plan within 14 days after award. Is the requirement in section H correct? Section F indicates 90 days; Section H 14 days.

  
Answer: Yes. The RFP will be amended to include the Section H.15 14 day requirement for a C&A Package. The Security Management Plan will still be required.

******************************************************

Question Number: 151


Question: Will the government define the sensitivity of data based on FIIPS 199?

  
Answer: Since the Coupon Program is responsible for the administration and management of over $1.3B of public funds, the Government has determined the initial FIPS 199 assessment will have a potential impact of “High” for the financial information security category. The Offeror must include FIPS 199 requirements in their technical solution.

                                                           ******************************************************

Question Number: 152


Question: Regarding the Quality Assurance Surveillance Plan, does NTIA or Commerce have a blanket OMB clearance that the contractor can use to perform surveys of the public? If not, how quickly could NTIA push through an OMB clearance packet?

  
Answer: Each form or data collection instrument must undergo an OMB clearance process. There is no blanket clearance. For example, developing the coupon application will require OMB clearance before it is made available to the public on 1/1/08.

******************************************************

Question Number: 153


Question: Is mail processing required 24X7 if not required by the contractor to meet service level agreements?

  
Answer: The Offeror can define the service level standard for mail processing. The Government understands that the U. S. Postal Service does not process mail 24x7.

******************************************************

Question Number: 154


Question: On Federal Holidays is the accessibility required for communications with retailer and customers?

  
Answer: Yes

******************************************************

Question Number: 155


Question: Section C.3.3.2(13) states Contractor must provide appropriate data rights and use agreements to NTIA as needed. What is NTIAâs expectation of this provision in the context of this contract?

  
Answer: All materials used by the Contractor must be owned or licensed, all data must be collected, stored, and transferred pursuant to applicable privacy and data protection laws, and all of the information collected by the Contractor under the Coupon Program contract is Government data. In addition, the Government expects the Contractor to obtain all licenses necessary for the use of software and other materials involved in providing services under this contract. Evidence of such licenses would constitute "data rights and use agreements."

*************************** 1***************************

Question Number: 156


Question: Section C.4 (1) and (2)(a) conflict. In Section C.4(1), the RFP states that Contractor must be ready to accept consumer requests on January 1, 2008, however, in Section C.4(2)(a), the RFP states that the Contractor will accept consumer requests and coupon distribution between April 1, 2008 and March 31, 2009. Can you confirm the start date to accept calls is January 1, 2008?

  
Answer: Yes, the start date to accept consumer requests is January 1, 2008. Also see the answer to question 196 for additional guidance on the January 1, 2008 and April 1, 2008 dates.

*************************** 1***************************

Question Number: 157


Question: Section F.1.1. FAR 52.242-15 AUG 1989 Stop Work Order Alternate I (APR 1984) is applicable to cost reimbursement type contracts. Since this is a firm fixed price contract, shouldn't the correct provision be FAR 52.242-15 AUG 1989 Stop Work Order (without Alternate I APR 1984)?


Answer: See Amendment 4 Section F.1.1 placed in Fedbizops 4/20/07

*************************** 1***************************

Question Number: 158


Question: Contractor Performance Information. Can you confirm that “other NTIA sources” would not include a competitor?

  
Answer: We do not understand what you mean by "competitor." Please see Amendment 4 M.3.7 Factor 2, Sub-factor B for further clarification on how the Government will perform Past Performance evaluations.

*************************** *****************************

Question Number: 160


Question: Section I.79 and I.80 conflict. FAR part 52.217-8 Option To Extend Services states that performance shall not exceed 6 months after the termination of the contract (i.e. September 30, 2010). FAR part 52.217-9 Option To Extend The Term Of The Contract states that the total duration shall not extend beyond March 31, 2011. Which one applies?

  
Answer: Both apply and do not conflict.

52.217-8 Extends Services by up to 6 months.

52.217-9 Extends the Term of the Contract.

They both apply and do not conflict. FAR part 52.217-8 Option To Extend Services is a separate option from that described in FAR part 52.217-9 and is exercisable, separately, in the discretion of the Government.

******************************************************

Question Number: 161


Question: Typically in financial networks, the issuer settles to acquirers who then settle to retailers. Given this process, can the Government initiate payments to the issuer (Coupon Program Contractor) rather than the retailers? If not, please clarify how payments to network acquirers (organizations that route retailer transactions) will be settled?

  
Answer: No. 

See RFP Section C.3 “The Contractor shall furnish the necessary personnel, material, equipment, services and facilities (except as otherwise specified): to perform the following Statement of Objectives and as referenced as attachments in Section J.”

******************************************************

Question Number: 162


Question: M.1(a) Clarification is needed on the Best Value methodology the government will use in evaluating proposals and making an award. Section M.1 (a) states that the “Government will use the best value trade-off process in determining which offer is in the best interest of the Government in accordance with FAR 15.101-2”. FAR 15.101 contains two sub-sections. 

- 15.101-1 “Tradeoff process” states that all evaluation factors and subfactors that affect contract award and their relative importance shall be clearly stated in the solicitation. This process allows the Government to accept “other than the lowest priced proposal”. 

- 15.101-2 “Lowest price technically acceptable source selection process” requires that proposals are to be evaluated for acceptability but not ranked using non-cost/price factors. The award would be made to the bidder whose proposal had the lowest evaluated price meeting or exceeding the acceptability for non-cost factors. 

Given that Section M.2 contains a detailed description of the qualitative evaluation process and states that the overall non-price rating is significantly more important than price, which is consistent with the “Tradeoff process” shown in 15.101-1. We believe the Government’s intent is to follow the “Tradeoff process” and that the reference to 15.101-2 is a typo, which should have been a reference to 15.101-1. Will you please clarify that the Government intends to use the “Tradeoff process”? 

  
Answer: You are correct.  The correct reference is 15.101-1 and not 15.101-2.  The Government will use the Trade Off Process in determining which offer is in the best interest of the Government.

See Amendment 4 placed in Fedbizops 4/20/07

******************************************************

Question Number: 163


Question: Who, by name or by position, does NTIA anticipate will be the day-to-day NTIA spokesperson for the Converter Box Coupon Program? Will this be a Government position or will it be filled by an outside resource?  Will that person be available for regular travel?

  
Answer: The Consumer Education Director and his team will be responsible for the day-to-day outreach and dissemination of public information. The team will be available to travel on a regular basis. Communications with the media will be overseen by the NTIA Communications Director's office. The Communications Director will designate what public officials are to respond to media inquiries.

******************************************************

Question Number: 164


Question: Section 1.1 "The Dashboard is a tool that provides users a web based interface and is designed to deliver user-specific information relating to the health of the program, typically represented by key performance indicators and links to relevant reports and documents. Visual cues and graphs focus user attention on important trends, status, changes, and exceptions."

Within the dashboard, do you require the reports to be published documents, or can they be generated by having a reprint interface with pre-defined reporting scripts that interrogate information sources in real time to generate user defined reports?

  
Answer: Published reports and plans are required as identified in Section J Attachment J.VII, 1.3.4. However if the Offeror has a solution that provides best value to the Government the Government will evaluate the solution.

******************************************************

Question Number: 165


Question: Is there a preferred format required by NOAA to certify to terms and conditions of the RFP?

  
Answer: Certification is no longer required.  See Admendment 4

******************************************************

Question Number: 166


Question: How will the Performance Work Statement be evaluated? It is not detailed in section M-Evaluation Factors for Award.

  
Answer: See Amendment 4 issued via Fedbizops 4/20/07 Section M3.3.(a) 

Factor 1 – Value to the Government 

Sub-Factor A- Technical 

(a) Performance Work Statement and Concept of Operations Criteria: Theh proposed Performance Work Statement and concept of operations describe the comprehensive, efficient, and realistic solution to achieving Coupon Program objectives and requirements.

******************************************************

Question Number: 167


Question: Attachment J.VI contains the Contract Data Requirement List. The second deliverable "Start-Up Plan" (page 77), requires the Draft 15 days after contract award and the Final 30 days after contract award. On page 28, F.8 Versions, UPDATES paragraph, in line 8 is "The Government has 15 days to review Draft documents." This results in the Final Start-Up Plan being due on the same day the Government review comments are received.

  
Answer: True if there are no comments from the Government. RFP Section F also states: "If the Contractor receives no comments back from the Government within the 15-day period, the Contractor shall assume the Draft to be a Final document.  If the Government provides comments, then an updated version is due within 30 days after receiving the Government's comments."

******************************************************

Question Number: 168


Question: In the RFP it states âBased on the U.S. Census Bureau definition, a household is defined as separate living quarters with a separate U.S. Postal address, but generally does not include a Post Office Box.â

  
Answer: See Final Rule 301 e.g., Section II Discussion, C  Application Process, paragraph 21."Given the sensitivity of commenters to the prevalence of Post Office Boxes in rural America, NTIA will make allowances for households on Indian Reservations, Alaskan Native Villages and other rural areas where Post Office Boxes are the only means of mail delivery. Residents of Indian reservation, Alaskan Native Villages and other rural areas without home postal delivery may be requested to supply additional information to identify the physical location of the household."

******************************************************

Question Number: 169


Question: States that the vendor will have to support multiple language requests. To what extent (live operator, IVR, Email, etc)  will the contractor be required to support the contract and will this support have to be 24x7?

  
Answer: See answers to questions 82, 85 and 90.

******************************************************

Question Number: 170


Question: The RFP states âContractor personnel requiring any access to systems operated by the Contractor for DOC or interconnected to a DOC network to perform contract services shall be screened at an appropriate level in accordance with Commerce Acquisition Manual 1337.70, Security Processing Requirements for Service Contracts.â

  
Answer: Per CAR 1337.70 the Contractor's personnel will be screened at a Moderate Risk level. Screening includes completing a Standard Form 85P, Questionnaire for Public Trust Positions, Fingerprint Chart with OPM's designation in the ORI Block; and Credit Release Authorization. The Government does not see the Contractor incurring any fees for this level of screening; however the Offeror should include in its cost proposal the labor cost for supporting the Government in gathering this information.

******************************************************

Question Number: 172


Question: Rule 301.6(b)(2)(A) says retailers seeking to participate must have been engaged in the consumer electronics retail business for at least one year unless waived for good cause by NTIA.  Is the contractor expected to provide support to NTIA in addressing requests for waiver of this rule?

  
Answer: Yes, the requirement may be waived upon a showing of good cause.  A determination of "good cause" will be based on a showing of what is in the best interest of the coupon program.  Therefore, the Contractor is expected to provide support to NTIA in addressing requests for waiver.  See Final Rule, discussion at paragraph 119.  mb approved 4/24/07

******************************************************

Question Number: 173


Question: Transaction-based pricing is based on the definition of a “successfully completed transaction”. This is only defined for consumer coupon distribution and coupon redemption/payment. There are other exception transaction scenarios that may occur during the course of the contract (e.g., consumer coupon re-issue due to lost/stolen; retailer adjustments for return items, etc.). Will transaction-based pricing encompass these exception types of transactions as well?

                          
Answer: Yes for consumer coupon re-issue due to lost/stolen coupons. For your second example see Final Rule 301 Section II Discussion B. Coupon Value and Use Restrictions, "NTIA recognizes the opportunities for fraud and abuse by permitting consumers to receive a cash refund for the value of the coupon or for credit towards another item outside of the program. Therefore, NTIA will permit an exchange only for another converter box certified under these regulations." There is no retailer adjustments for returned items that generates a âsuccessfully completed transactionâ

                                         ******************************************************

Question Number: 174


Question: The RFP indicates that the vendor will not be involved in coordinating the manufacture and shipping of the converter boxes to retailers. How would the government propose to address any issues/constraints with box manufacture timeliness and/or scarcity, so as not to inadvertently impose performance or financial risks on the selected vendor?

  
Answer: Section B SLIN 0002AB Fixed Operational allows the Offeror to firm fixed price non transaction components. Once authorized by the CO, the Contractor can bill for these services regardless of the number of transactions.  For Transactions SLINs, which are volume based, at present NTIA does not anticipate any constraints from manufacturers due to timeliness or scarcity of converters.  Both the Government and the Contractor must identify and manage risks such as this in a coordinated way.

******************************************************

Question Number: 175


Question: In paragraph 124 of the text in the Final Rule, it states that "payments will typically be processed no later than 3 business days after the retailer submits an authorized transaction to NTIA or its contractor."  Please clarify if it is 3 days from when the contractor receives the transaction data from the retailer, or 3 days from when the contractor presents the payment information to the NTIA Coupon Program office or NIST Finance Office after completing any validation procedures.

  
Answer: 72 business hours from when the Coupon Program Contractor's file is pulled by NIST. See RPF Section J.VIII " 9."The Government intends to make payment to retailers no later than 72 business hours (excluding Saturday, Sunday and federal holidays) starting at 8:00 a.m. from the day NIST pulls the Reimbursement File."

******************************************************

Question Number: 176


Question: In paragraph 124 of the text in the Final Rule, it states that "payments will typically be processed no later than 3 business days after the retailer submits an authorized transaction to NTIA or its contractor." What data constitutes submission of an authorized transaction by the retailer?  In other words, what does NTIA expect the retailer to submit to NTIA or its contractor in order to receive payment?

  
Answer: The Contractor submits the data to the Government for payment to the retailer. See RFP Section J Attachment J.VIII for the payment workflow and required data.  For example, "7.  The Coupon Program contractor creates and posts a daily...Reimbursement File on their file transfer protocol (FTP) site before 8:00 a.m.  This file must contain the summary data elements as defined in Table B consistent with the required CFS accounts payable standard interface (APSI) format..."

******************************************************

Question Number: 177


Question: Does the $5 million cap for SLINs 001AD and 0002AA include the production (printing) of the necessary collateral material to support the Consumer Education Program?  If not, is the production to be handled by the Government Printing Office?

  
Answer: Yes the $5m cap includes production/printing costs of the necessary collateral material for Consumer Education. The Contractor must provide the service as part of their Consumer Education Plan solution.

It is not a requirement that printing and production of consumer education materials be handled by the GPO if it is not the best value. OMB issued guidance in 2002 that Federal departments and agencies should select printing and duplication services based on the best quality, cost, and time of delivery. The OMB guidance also states that agencies may use GPO's services if GPO can provide them at the better combination of quality, price, and time of delivery.

******************************************************

Question Number: 178


Question: At the Bidders Conference held on March 26, 2007, a statement was made concerning the fact that the National Association of Broadcasters (âNABâ

Q 1- Has the scope of the PSA placement been determined (i.e. Number of spots to air, timing of campaign, reach of households, etc.)?

Q 2- Is it expected that the selected vendor would produce the PSA materials and provide them to the NAB for distribution?

  
Answer: The NAB will be developing PSAs to be aired in 2008.

Answer 2: The vendor will not produce the PSA materials for the NAB spots.

******************************************************

Question Number: 179


Question: Can you share when NTIA anticipates on releasing the questions and answers?

  
Answer: Answers to questions are being released as they are complete.

******************************************************

Question Number: 180


Question: If the Government pays the retailer via an issuer bank, may the issuer bank pre-draw the funds in order to expedite the payment to the retailers and decrease the actual cost of funds for the Contractor?

  
Answer: No. The U.S. Treasury will pay the retailer. See answer to question 126.

******************************************************

Question Number: 181


Question: Under the directions for the organization of the Management Plan, states that âLarge business Offerors shall also include a Small Business Subcontracting Plan.â

            
Answer: See Amendment 4 issued via Fedbizops 4/20/07.

The Small Business Subcontracting Plan required of large business Offerors is excluded from the overall maximum page count of the Management Plan (Section 4) specified in L.7 CAR 1352.215-71 PROPOSAL PREPARATION.

******************************************************

Question Number: 182


Question: Section F.8 states that the Government has 15 days to review draft documents.

a) Is this 15 calendar days or business days?

The Start-Up plan deliverable listed in Attachment J.VI has Draft due 15 days after contract award and Final Start-Up Plan due 30 days after contract award.

b) Due to 15 day Government review cycle, we suggest this be amended to be Draft due â30 daysâ60 daysâ

  
Answer: a) The RFP is clear 15 days after contract award is calendar days.

b) No. Due to the mandatory milestone to accept household coupon requests by January 1, 2008, the Government requires the Offeror to have a detailed draft Start-up Plan by 15 days after contract award.

******************************************************

Question Number: 183


Question: The current CLIN 0002 structure separates the Fixed Operational costs (SLIN 0002AB) from the transaction costs.

a) Will the Government add a new SLIN, âSLIN 0003ACâ

The change is requested to ensure that any additional infrastructure costs associated with the additional certification component are only incurred by the Government if the option is executed.  Under the current CLIN structure, those costs would be embedded in SLIN 0002AB.

  
Answer: No. All cost for CLIN0003 CONTINGENT FUNDS PROCESSING/CONTINGENT PERIOD should be priced in this CLIN. See RFP Section B.2.3 FP REQUIREMENTS SLINS FOR TRANSACTIONS - Includes all Offerorâs transaction-based labor and non-labor cost, to include volume-driven recurring service center costs and any financial processing fees for activation, redemption and authorization of payment for coupons. If the Offeror's solution requires additional non-transaction cost for CLIN 0003, price it and provide the reason in your cost proposal response.

******************************************************

Question Number: 184


Question: RFP states that proposals must be submitted by April 30, 2007.  During the March 26, 2007 bidders conference, NTIA mentioned several times that they would like primes to seek out small business team members, and to take advantage of the networking opportunity provided via the bidders conference.  Will NTIA consider an extension of the due date to May 11th to allow us a better opportunity to integrate such small businesses into our current proposed solutions?

  
Answer: See Amendment 4 issued April 20th via Fedbizops section L.8.

******************************************************

Question Number: 185


Question: C.3.3.1.5.d

Q1: Should the contractor allow consumers to report coupons as lost or stolen?

Q2: If coupons are reported as lost or stolen, is the contractor to provide the household with replacement(s)?

Q3: Can expired coupons be reissued to the same household if they have not been used?

  
Answer: Q1 The answer is yes.

Q2 See answer to question 20.

Q3 See answer to question 21.

******************************************************

Question Number: 186


Question: Q1: The RFP states that the startup/OCD phase begins on contract award and ends March 31, 2008; the operational phase is to begin April 1, 2008.

Q2:  Is it possible to propose an earlier start to the operational phase, assuming a successful conclusion to the OCD earlier than March 31?

  
Answer: Q1 Is a statement and is correct.

Q2 The Government will consider an earlier start to the operational phase if it is in the best interest of the Government. See RFP Section M.1 CAR 1352.215-75 Basis for Evaluation (March 2000) and M.2 CAR 1352.215-76 EVALUATION CRITERIA (March 2000).

******************************************************

Question Number: 187


Question: 1.3.4.1 Item 9

Q1. Will the government advise the contractor when payment has been issued to the retailer?

Q2. Will the government advise the contractor when retailer has acknowledged receipt of payment from the government?

  
Answer: Yes to both questions.

******************************************************

Question Number: 188


Question: Q1: In examining CAR 1352.215.76, we are unable to locate this requirement and do not understand what is required.  "This is a pass-fail evaluation. Offerorâs who fail to provide such certification will no longer be considered for award."  Please provide clarification on what the Offeror must provide to be compliant with the statement "Offerorâs who fail to provide such certification will no longer be considered for award."

  
Answer: Certification is no longer required.  See Amendment 4 in Fedbizops 4/20/07.

******************************************************

Question Number: 189


Question: Can the RFP document be provided in a Word version in addition to the PDF format?

  
Answer: No.  The RFP shall not be released in an MSWord Document.  The .PDF document helps insure the integrity of the RFP document.

******************************************************

Question Number: 190


Question: Can you provide the North American Industry Classification System (NAICS) code for this acquisition?

  
Answer: The NAICS is 541611.

******************************************************

Question Number: 191


Question: Can you define the small business size standard for this acquisition?

  
Answer: The small business size for NAICS is $6.5 million.

******************************************************

Question Number: 192


Question: Where may we find the technical specification on Emergency Alert System (EAS) to implement this system? The spec from FCC web site appears to be designed for analog TV, but for digital TV.

  
Answer: The question is not relevant to the RFP and may have been inadvertently submitted.  Manufacturers are directed to the converter specifications spelled out in NTIA's Final Rule at Technical Appendix 1 (required) and 2 (permitted and disqualifying features).

******************************************************

Question Number: 194


Question: The RFP states that the purpose of a statement of objectives (SOO) is to encourage offerors to propose solutions which achieve the  best means for meeting those objectives. The RFP states that objective 3 is to "Provide financial processing for coupon redemption through retailers, authorize payment from the Coupon Program to retailers, and audit transactions" (page 14) which we interpret to mean that the offeror should propose the best means to achieve each element of the objective.

In attachment J-VIII, the Government is very explicit in the flow of financial transactions, from the authorization for payment, as determined by the contractor, through NIST, the U.S. Treasury and finally through the direct payment to the retailer for coupons which have been redeemed. The explicit and detailed nature of this provision appears to be in direct conflict with the SOO's intent of allowing the offeror to leverage existing best commercial practices. The Government has, through the explicit direction that funds flow directly to the retailers, eliminated a number of efficient, in-place solutions. In turn, this may discourage many retailers from participation in the Coupon Program.

We encourage the NTIA to reconsider the requirements outlined in Attachment J-VIII and permit the offeror to propose alternative solutions which may improve the ease with which retailers can participate and therefore provide greater access for consumers requesting the converter box coupon.

  
Answer: See answer to Question 126.

******************************************************

Question Number: 195


Question: At the top of this page it says that some questions have been modified in the past 48 hours? Does this mean that prior responses to questions have been modified?  Can you please identify those answers that have been modified since they were first posted so that we don't have to read and compare all responses.  Thank you

  
Answer: A link is provided directly to the questions that contain modified answers.  The Link is found about three lines down on the Webpage for RFP Questions and Answers and states:

"The following questions have been posted/modified within the last 48 hours"

Look at the webpage at least once every 48 hours. If the information given is "None" then no questions have been posted/modified.

At this time we have no way to retrace past the 48 hour window.

******************************************************

Question Number: 196


Question: With regard to activity from January 1 - March 31, 2008.  The RFP states that the offeror must be ready to receive requests for coupons by January 1.  In addition, the RFP states that coupon distribution will occur in the Operational Period (starting 4/1/08).  Is the offeror expected to collect requests for coupons for the 3 month period (1/1/08 â 3/31/08) and begin coupon distribution for those collected requests beginning on April 1, 2008, the commencement date of the Operational Phase?  Or is the offeror expected to begin distribution of coupons prior to April 1?  If coupons are distributed prior to 4/1, how should the offeror represent pricing for those coupons that are distributed between 1/1 and 3/31?  As OCD transactions (SLIN 0001AB) or as Operational transactions (SLIN 0002AC)?

  
Answer: Yes, the Contractor must be ready to accept coupon requests on January 1, 2008, as required by law. Limited distribution and redemption of coupons starts during the Start-up and OCD phase. The Contractor can define the number of transactions for both distribution and redemption they propose to demonstrate their system to the Government. The demonstration at some point must process actual transactions. Any requested coupons not processed during this phase can be held for the operational phase. Once the system is approved by the Government, the operational phase starts and any held requests and all new requests for distribution and redemption must be processed based on the Contractor's service level standards. If the actual transaction processing occurs in the Start-up and OCD phase, use SLIN 0001AB and 0001AC. If the actual processing occurs in the operational phase, use SLIN 0002AC and 0002AD.

******************************************************

Question Number: 197


Question: Please confirm that payment for coupon distribution transactions is on a per-coupon, not a per-mailing basis.

(That is, fulfilling requests for households who order two coupons supplied in a single envelope will result in payment to the contractor for two coupon distribution transactions.  Since there are direct costs associated with the manufacture and processing of each card, it is suggested that the NTIA establish payment on a per-coupon basis.)

  
Answer: For evaluation purposes, price a distribution transaction on a per coupon basis consistent with RFP Section B. Invoicing will be on a per household/mailing basis, e.g., if the household requests one coupon the invoice would be one times the unit price for a distribution transaction. If the household requests two coupons, the invoice would be two times the unit price for a distribution transaction. However, the Government realizes the contractor could incur a lower cost to process and mail "two coupons" in a single household/mailing, therefore the Offeror could propose a discount for these types of transactions or include a discount in their price. There is no requirement to have two individual coupons in the mailing, the Offeror should propose a best value solution consistent with the RFP outcomes and requirements.

******************************************************

Question Number: 198


Question: Assuming that some coupons will expire unused and therefore that the resulting funds are available for distribution to other consumers, it is theoretically possible for the offeror to be reimbursed for distribution of more than 22,250,000M coupons within the initial set of funds.

Please confirm that this is acceptable.

  
Answer: Yes

******************************************************

Question Number: 199


Question: The RFP instructions in Section L on page 57 limit the Quality Assurance Surveillance Plan to 10 pages.   At the bidder's conference, the Government stated that the 10 page limit excluded required tables from Attachment JII, Performance Tables A &B.

Question: Please clarify whether the 10 page limit for the QASP excludes the Performance Measurement Tables A&B.

  
Answer: Yes the page limitation excludes Tables A & B in Attachment J.II. The RFP Section L.7 was Ammended in Ammendment 4 section L.7 CAR 1352.215-71  Proposal Preparation Notes: (4)

******************************************************

Question Number: 200


Question: Section L-7 (b), Volume I Section 4.0. Management Plan (7), page 60

Section L-7, sub-section (b), entitled "Volume 1 Section 4.0 - Management Plan" states that "Large business offerors shall also include a small business subcontracting plan."

Question: May that subcontracting plan be submitted as an appendix to Volume 1 such that the content of the subcontracting plan is excluded from the page count limitation (30) for the Management Plan?

  
Answer: The Small Business Subcontracting Plan is excluded from the Management Plan page count limitation. See Amendment 4 Section 4. L.7 CAR 1352.215-71  Proposal Preparation Notes: (1).

******************************************************

Question Number: 201


Question: Section L-7 (b), Volume I Section 4.0. Management Plan (7) c, page 60 

Section L-7, sub-section (b), entitled "Volume 1 Section 4.0 - Management Plan" (7) c. states :A subcontract management plan identifying: “c. “The planned subcontract dollar value for each subcontractor listed in a. above.” 

Question: The requirement appears to be inconsistent with the desire to keep Volume I –Technical and Volume II – Pricing volumes separate. Please confirm that only percentages, and not dollar amounts, should be included in Volume I.

  
Answer: The requirement to indicate subcontract dollar values in the Subcontract Management Plan has been deleted.  See Amendment 4

******************************************************

Question Number: 202


Question: Section 3.3.1, help desk languages, page 16

Government response to question 90

Question: The government has identified a site that is supposed to tell us how many languages we need to support.  However, we are unable to get to the second site mentioned.

www.usdoj.gov/crt/cor/lep/commerceLepGuidanceReqComment.htm

  
Answer: www.usdoj.gov/crt/cor/lep/CommerceLepGuidanceReqComment.htm
******************************************************

Question Number: 203


Question: Please clarify the NTIAâs public education program requirements and communications players with whom NTIA is working.  For example, during the bidders conference, a funded ârelationshipâ

                                      
Answer: The NAB's mission with respect to the transition is broader than NTIA's. NAB is part of the DTV Transition Coalition to trigger broad industry and community-based involvement in raising consumer awareness while also working with broadcast stations and station owners to run PSAs to alert the public about the digital transition in its broadest sense. NTIA's efforts will complement the NAB's efforts but will focus on forming partnerships with the same and similar stakeholder groups to raise awareness about the Television Converter Coupon Program, one key element of the digital transition.

******************************************************

Question Number: 204


Question: Is the NAB program designed to raise awareness of the overall analog/digital environment and switch or should the coupon education program also address that?

  
Answer: This procurement's consumer education efforts should focus on the Television Converter Coupon Program, not the larger digital transition efforts. That said, it should dovetail with the larger digital transition educational efforts underway by the DTV Transition Coalition, the FCC and other stakeholders.

******************************************************

Question Number: 205


Question: Is the NAB producing and releasing both awareness and “coupon promotion” PSAs or does the public education program alone handle the coupon promotion portion?

    
Answer: NAB's specific plans for its PSAs are not finalized. NTIA will work closely with the NAB to ensure the Television Converter Coupon Program is featured in its PSAs. However, while we have made it clear that it is not our intention to buy ad time with the consumer education funds, the offeror is expected to provide a solution to promote the production and broadcast of PSAs by media outlets.

******************************************************

Question Number: 206


Question: Regarding the answer to question 74, since public service announcements (“PSA”) are aired on a free basis and are not “purchased media ads”, can a “coupon promotion” PSA be produced and distributed as part of this public education effort?

                                               
Answer: Yes.

******************************************************

Question Number: 207


Question: Section C.4.1 states that the Start-Up and OCD period will begin at contract award and must be completed by March 31, 2009.  In addition, the Contractor must be ready  to accept consumer requests on January 1, 2008.  Does NTIA also envision that coupon distribution will commence on January 1, 2008 as well?

  
Answer: See answer to question 196.

******************************************************

Question Number: 208


Question: According to NTIA, contract award is anticipated to be August 15.  Since retailer certification begins on June 1, 2007, how does NTIA intend to transition this task to the Contractor?

  
Answer: The Final Rule (301.6(b)(1) permits interested retailers to start contacting NTIA on June 1, 2007.  In response to retailer inquiries, NTIA may collect information contained in the Retailer Data Collection Form, Attachment J.XI in order to learn more about the number and type of prospective retailers and to spot potential program issues. It is not the Government's intention to act upon applications but to turn over that information to the Contractor upon contract award.

******************************************************

Question Number: 209


Question: Will NTIA be responsible for notifying the Contractor of additions and/or deletions to the Coupon-Eligible Converter Box (CECB) list?

  
Answer: Yes

******************************************************

Question Number: 210


Question: On page 79 of the RFP, it states that the Close-Out Plan should include "Final financial audits and reconciliation reports".  Is it expected that the contractor needs to produce audited project financial statements at the end of the project?  Or, is this stating that the contractor is to perform internal audits on project financial information (costs and revenue), and provide this financial information as well as any reconciliation reports as required?

  
Answer: The Final Financial Audits and Reconciliation for the Close-Out Plan are separate and apart from the Audit Clause in Section I, 52.215-2.  These audits and reconciliation reports are specific to the expenditures of the public funds for coupon distribution, redemption, and retailer payments.  The Contractor is expected to provide an audit and reconciliation of all monies allotted and expended for these services.  Additionally, in order to complete contract close out, the Contractor is expected to reconcile all payments to the Contractor related to transactions with credits applied for service level measures as well as reconciling all performance milestone payments.

******************************************************

Question Number: 211


Question: WAs the wrong box was checked on block 11 of the SF 30 for Amendment 4. The correct box is that the due date for reciept of proposals has been extended. The solicitation for the Coupons Program due date has been extended from April 30, 2007 to May 07, 2007 See L.8 of Amendment 4.

  
Answer: The wrong box was checked on block 11 of the SF 30 for Amendment 4. The correct box is that the due date for reciept of proposals has been extended. The solicitation for the Coupons Program due date has been extended from April 30, 2007 to May 07, 2007 See L.8 of Amendment 4.

******************************************************

Question Number: 212


Question: The following link, http://www.osec.doc.gov/cio/itmhweb/itmhweb1.html, found in section H.15 of the RFP does not work.  What is the correct link?  Thank you.

  
Answer: The correct address is

http://www.osec.doc.gov/cio/ITSIT/DOC-IT-Security-Program-Policy.htm

******************************************************

Question Number: 213


Question: Will the government consider increasing the overall proposal page limit, and also request that all offerers provide an executive summary?

  
Answer: No. The Government considers the page limits to be appropriate for the requirements. An Executive Summary is not desired.
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